
People & Places Board
Agenda

www.local.gov.uk

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tuesday, 14 September 2021 
1.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Hybrid meeting (via Microsoft Teams OR 
Beecham Room, 18 Smith Square, London, 
SW1P 3HZ) 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Guidance notes for members and visitors 
18 Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ 
 
Please read these notes for your own safety and that of all visitors, staff and tenants. 
 
Welcome! 
18 Smith Square is located in the heart of Westminster, and is nearest to the Westminster, Pimlico, 
Vauxhall and St James’s Park Underground stations, and also Victoria, Vauxhall and Charing Cross 
railway stations. A map is available on the back page of this agenda.  
 
Security 
All visitors (who do not have an LGA ID badge), are requested to report to the Reception desk where 
they will be asked to sign in and will be given a visitor’s badge to be worn at all times whilst in the 
building. 
 
18 Smith Square has a swipe card access system meaning that security passes will be required to 
access all floors.  Most LGA governance structure meetings will take place on the ground floor, 7th 
floor and 8th floor of 18 Smith Square.  
 
Please don’t forget to sign out at reception and return your security pass when you depart. 
 
Fire instructions 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the green Fire Exit 
signs. Go straight to the assembly point in Tufton Street via Dean Trench Street (off Smith Square). 
 
DO NOT USE THE LIFTS. 
DO NOT STOP TO COLLECT PERSONAL BELONGINGS. 
DO NOT RE-ENTER BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 
 
Open Council 
Open Council, on the 7th floor of 18 Smith Square, provides informal meeting space  
and refreshments for local authority members and officers who are in London.  
 
Toilets  
Unisex toilet facilities are available on every floor of 18 Smith Square. Accessible toilets are also 
available on all floors. 
 
Accessibility 
If you have special access needs, please let the meeting contact know in advance and we will do our 
best to make suitable arrangements to meet your requirements. 
 
Every effort has been made to make the building as accessible as possible for people with 
disabilities. Induction loop systems have been installed in the larger meeting rooms and at the main 
reception. There is a parking space for blue badge holders outside the Smith Square entrance and 
two more blue badge holders’ spaces in Dean Stanley Street to the side of the building. There is also 
a wheelchair lift at the main entrance. For further information please contact the Facilities 
Management Helpdesk on 020 7664 3015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Guest WiFi in 18 Smith Square  
WiFi is available in 18 Smith Square for visitors. It can be accessed by enabling “Wireless Network 
Connection” on your computer and connecting to LGA-Free-WiFi. You will then need to register, 
either by completing a form or through your Facebook or Twitter account (if you have one). You only 
need to register the first time you log on.  
 

The LGA also offers the Govroam network, a Wi-Fi network which gives Members seamless roaming 
internet access across multiple public-sector locations if you have also signed up for this service. 
This network is enabled throughout our Westminster building and allows Members and staff from 
other authorities who are part of the Govroam network to seamlessly connect to our Wi-Fi.  

 
Further help 
Please speak either to staff at the main reception on the ground floor, if you require any further help 
or information. You can find the LGA website at www.local.gov.uk  

http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
People & Places Board 
14 September 2021 

 

There will be a hybrid meeting of the People & Places Board at 1.00 pm on Tuesday, 14 
September 2021 Hybrid meeting (via Microsoft Teams OR Beecham Room, 18 Smith Square, 
London, SW1P 3HZ). 
 

Political Group meetings: 
Please contact your political group as outlined below for further details. 
 

Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223     email:     lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3263     email:     LABGP@lga.gov.uk 
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224     email:     independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk   
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235     email:     libdem@local.gov.uk 
 

LGA Contact:  
Emma West (emma.west@local.gov.uk) 
 

Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of £9.00 per hour or £10.55  
if receiving London living wage is available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly 
people or people with disabilities) incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 

Social Media 
The LGA is committed to using social media in a co-ordinated and sensible way, as part of a 
strategic approach to communications, to help enhance the reputation of local government, 
improvement engagement with different elements of the community and drive efficiency. Please feel 
free to use social media during this meeting. However, you are requested not to use social media 
during any confidential items. 
 
 

mailto:lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk
mailto:LABGP@lga.gov.uk
mailto:independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk
mailto:libdem@local.gov.uk
mailto:emma.west@local.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

People & Places Board – Membership 2021/22 
 
Councillor Authority 

  
Conservative ( 12)  
Cllr Kevin Bentley (Chairman) Essex County Council 

Cllr Morris Bright MBE (Vice 
Chairman) 

Hertsmere Borough Council 

Cllr Rachel Bailey Cheshire East Council 

Cllr Marc Bayliss Worcester City Council 
Cllr Peter Butlin Warwickshire County Council 

Cllr Hilary Carrick Cumbria County Council 
Cllr Sam Chapman-Allen Breckland Council 

Cllr Jordan Meade Gravesham Borough Council 
Cllr Eddie Reeves Oxfordshire County Council 

Cllr Martin Tett Buckinghamshire Council 
Cllr Phillippa Williamson Lancashire County Council 

Cllr Barry Wood Cherwell District Council 
  

Substitutes  
Cllr Colin Davie Lincolnshire County Council 

Cllr Peter Heydon Bracknell Forest Borough Council 
Cllr Colin Kemp Woking Borough Council 

  
Labour ( 4)  

Cllr Simon Henig CBE (Deputy 
Chair) 

Durham County Council 

Cllr Kyle Robinson Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council 
Cllr Doina Cornell Stroud District Council 

Cllr Damien Greenhalgh Derbyshire County Council 
  

Substitutes  
Cllr Alan Waters Norwich City Council 

Cllr Rosanne Kirk Lincoln City Council 
Cllr Erica Lewis Lancaster City Council 

  
Liberal Democrat ( 3)  

Cllr Emily Smith (Vice-Chair) Vale of White Horse District Council 

Cllr Caroline Leaver North Devon Council 

Cllr Stan Collins Cumbria County Council 

  
Independent ( 3)  

Cllr Emily O'Brien (Deputy Chair) Lewes District Council 
Cllr Kevin Etheridge Caerphilly County Borough Council 

Cllr Sue Roberts South Oxfordshire District Council 
  

Substitutes  
Cllr Georgina Hill Northumberland County Council 

Cllr Nicola Dillon Jones North Kesteven District Council 
Cllr Rosemarie Harris Powys County Council 



 

 

 
 

Agenda 
 

People & Places Board 
 
Tuesday 14 September 2021 
 
1.00 pm 
 
Hybrid meeting (via Microsoft Teams OR Beecham Room, 18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 
3HZ) 
 

 
 

 Item Page 
 

1.   Chair's Welcome, Introductions, 
Apologies/Substitutes and Declarations of Interest 
 

  

2.   Minutes of the last meeting 
 

1 - 10  

3.   Terms of Reference 
 

11 - 14  

4.   People & Places Work Programme 2021/22 
 

15 - 20  

5.   Levelling Up Locally 
 

21 - 26  

6.   Refreshing our employment and skills work 
 

27 - 34  

7.   UK Shared Prosperity Fund: Learning from the 
Community Renewal Fund 
 

35 - 40  

 
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Tuesday, 16 November 2021, 1.00 pm, Hybrid meeting 

(via Microsoft Teams OR Victoria Room, 18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 
3HZ) 

 



Document is Restricted

Page 1

Agenda Item 2





 

 

People & Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Terms of reference 

 

Purpose of report 

For decision. 

 

Summary 

The People and Places Board provides a forum for local authorities that are not metropolitan 
to debate economic growth and public service transformation in their areas. Members are 
asked to review and agree the Board’s terms of reference.  
 

Is this report confidential? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Rebecca Cox 

Position:   Principal Policy Adviser 

Phone no:   0207 187 7384  

Email:    rebecca.cox@local.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Recommendation/s 

Members are asked to agree the People and Places Board’s terms of reference. 

Action/s 

Member services officers to record and publish the agreed ToR.  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

People & Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Terms of reference 

 

Summary 
 

1. The People and Places Board provides a forum for local authorities that are not 
metropolitan to debate economic growth and public service transformation in their 
areas.  

 

Remit  

2. The People and Places Board brings together senior and authoritative elected 
members from non-metropolitan authorities (county, district/borough, and non-
metropolitan unitary councils), and is reflective of those in Combined Authorities or 
seeking devolution deals. The role of the Board is to develop greater clarity on the 
role of non-metropolitan authorities in enabling economic growth for the long-term 
benefit of residents, and on how devolution and transformation of public services can 
enable that. Its remit is to consider how planning and infrastructure provision, 
publicly-funded skills and employment programmes, digital connectivity and housing 
might be better-deployed in a non-metropolitan setting to drive growth, and how 
people services and health and care integration, together with greater use of pooled 
funding, might help to drive transformation in services.  

 
Operational accountabilities  

3. The Board will seek to involve councillors in supporting the delivery of these priorities 
(through Forums, policy grouping, Special Interest Groups (SIGs), regional networks 
and other means of wider engagement); essentially operating as the centre of a 
network connecting to all councils and drawing on the expertise of key advisors from 
the sector.  
 

4. The People and Places Board will be responsible for:  

4.1 Ensuring the priorities of councils are fed into the business planning process.  
4.2 Developing a work programme to deliver their brief, covering lobbying, 

campaigns, research, improvement support and events and linking with other 
boards where appropriate.  

4.3 Sharing good practice and ideas to stimulate innovation and improvement.  
4.4 Representing and lobbying on behalf of the LGA, including making public 

statements on its areas of responsibility.  
4.5 Building and maintaining relationships with key stakeholders. 
4.6 Involving representatives from councils in its work, through task groups, 

Commissions, SIGs, regional networks and mechanisms.  
4.7 Responding to specific issues referred to the Board by one or more member 

councils or groupings of councils.  
 
5. The People and Places Board may:  

Page 12

Agenda Item 3

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

People & Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

5.1 Appoint members to relevant outside bodies in accordance with the Political 
Conventions.  

5.2 Appoint member champion and spokespersons from the Board to lead on key 
issues.  

 
6. Cllr Mark Hawthorne is currently the Board’s digital champion.  

 

Work Programme  

7. The Board to set its own work programme which is agreed at the start of each 
meeting cycle in early Autumn.  

 

Quorum  

8. One third of the members, provided that representatives of at least 2 political groups 
represented on the body are present.  

 

Political Composition  

9. The composition by political party is recalculated each year and reflects the political 
proportionality of the wider group of councils from which their membership is drawn.  
 

10. The current composition is:  
10.1 Conservative group: 12 members 
10.2 Labour group: 4 members  
10.3 Independent group: 3 members 
10.4 Liberal Democrat group: 3 members  
 
Substitute members from each political group may also be appointed.  

 

Frequency per year  

11. Meetings to be five time per annum.  
 

Reporting Accountabilities  

12. The LGA Executive provides oversight of the Board. The Board may report 
periodically to the LGA Executive as required and will submit an annual report to the 
Executive’s July meeting. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk




 

 

People and Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Work Programme 2021/22 

 

Purpose of report 

For direction. 

 

Summary 

This report sets out a work programme for the People and Places Board for the 2021/22 

political cycle for consideration and sign-off.  

 

Is this report confidential? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Philip Clifford 

Position:   Senior Adviser 

Phone no:   07909 898327  

Email:    philip.clifford@local.gov.uk  

 

 

Recommendation/s 

Members are asked to consider and agree to the proposed work programme for the 

People and Places Board for the 2021/22 cycle, including the proposal for a standalone 

workshop to consider in depth the Board’s views on current plans for devolution to non-

metropolitan England in paragraph 7.  

Action/s 

Officers will take forward the work programme over the next year, in line with comments 

from the People and Places Board and with sufficient flexibility to adapt to changes in 

national circumstance. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

People and Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Work Programme 2021/22 

Background 

1. As set out in the terms of reference, the People and Places Board represents the 

interests of non-metropolitan councils within the LGA. It has a shared interest and 

regularly works with the City Regions Board on a number of issues, including: devolution, 

skills and employment, local economic growth and the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. The 

People and Places Board also leads the LGA’s policy development on digital connectivity 

and has previously overseen work relating to town and parish councils and rural land 

management in England. 

 

2. This paper sets out a work programme for 2021/22. Members are asked to consider the 

proposed shape, direction and priorities and formally agree the programme, noting that 

uncertainty arising from the pandemic is likely to persist for the foreseeable future. 

Proposed Work Programme 

Devolution 

3. Devolution has been one of the Board’s core issues since its inception. Members have 

been clear that councils in non-metropolitan areas should be able access powers and 

resources through devolution comparable to that available to city regions. The LGA has 

consistently campaigned on this basis and the People and Places Board has led work to 

advance policy in this area, publishing The future of non-metropolitan England: the 

freedom to lead local places in July 2019. Recently, this has also included work to 

support the Devo APPG’s inquiry into Levelling-up Devo: the role of national government 

in making a success of devolution in England. 

 

4. On 27 July 2021 the Local Government Minister indicated that these calls had been 

heard in Whitehall and that a new round of devolution, including county devolution deals 

would be brought forward. These county deals are expected to be at least on a par with 

existing combined authority deals, with the potential to forge new territory for English 

devolution. Importantly the minister stressed that there was no appetite in central 

government for further devolution to be predicated on local governance reform. 

 

5. Over the summer the LGA published Devolution deal to delivery as a guide to support 

local areas looking to explore a devolution deal. It also published Local service delivery 

and place-shaping: A framework to support parish and town councils. Both these 

publications drew on evidence and advice from the People and Places Board and are the 

latest in a long line of board commissioned research in this area. 

 

6. Looking ahead to the autumn and the publication of the Levelling Up White Paper (see 

below) it is anticipated that the People and Places Board will want to continue to play a 

leading role in shaping the Government’s emerging policy on devolution and supporting 

local areas to secure the best possible deal for their residents. Reflecting the success of 

previous work, the Board may also wish to further explore the opportunity for further 

devolution to town and parish councils. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://lga.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s10670/TermsofReference.docx.pdf
https://local.gov.uk/publications/future-non-metropolitan-england-freedom-lead-local-places-final-report
https://local.gov.uk/publications/future-non-metropolitan-england-freedom-lead-local-places-final-report
https://connectpa.co.uk/devolution-appg/levelling-up-devo/
https://connectpa.co.uk/devolution-appg/levelling-up-devo/
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/devolution-deal-delivery
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/local-service-delivery-and-place-shaping-framework-support-parish-and-town-councils
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/local-service-delivery-and-place-shaping-framework-support-parish-and-town-councils


 

 

People and Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

7. To give members the opportunity for a full discussion of this topic, lead members have 

suggested a standalone devolution workshop in the autumn. This would allow members 

to hear from those who have been through the devolution process, discuss what they 

need from Government and others to make a success of a new round of devolution, and 

invite leading Government figures to hear their conclusions.  

Levelling Up 

8. The concept of ‘Levelling Up’ first appeared in Boris Johnson’s first speech as Prime 

Minister and later featured in the 2019 Conservative Party Manifesto. It has since been 

refined to cover a wide-ranging policy agenda, picking up aspects of public service 

reform, addressing regional economic disparity, and the role of culture in building civic 

pride and resilience. 

  

9. In May 2021, the Government announced its plans to publish a Levelling Up White Paper 

later this year. Reports have suggested publication will be alongside the Spending 

Review in the autumn. MHCLG has since confirmed that this will supersede the 

anticipated Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper and will include further details 

regarding the next phase of devolution deals.  

 

10. As detailed in a separate paper to Lead Members it has been agreed that over the next 

political cycle the People and Places and City Regions Boards will jointly oversee a 

programme of research and round tables to explore different aspects of levelling up 

locally, including: 

 

10.1 The opportunities to de-fragment policy and funding programmes at the local level to 

improve the quality of public service outcomes and address concentrations of 

deprivation 

10.2 The role that devolution to democratically elected local leaders can play in binding 

communities and anchor institutions together to strengthen resilience, align national 

and local priorities and articulate policy interventions necessary to support balanced 

economic growth 

10.3 The optimal relationship between local and national government, the private and 

public sector and physical and social infrastructure investment in addressing inter 

and intra-regional inequalities 

10.4 The potential of local cultural capital and other assets to strengthen inward 

investment, encourage entrepreneurialism and support demographic dynamism 

 

Economic Growth and Recovery 

11. Following the commissioning and publication of Rural recognition, recovery, resilience 

and revitalisation it is proposed that the Board will want to ensure that the Levelling Up 

White Paper responds to the needs and priorities of rural and coastal areas. It is also 

suggested that the Board might wish to explore the implications of the National Food 

Strategy for rural areas, recognising the significant contribution the agricultural industry 

makes to rural economies and communities.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/rural-recognition-recovery-resilience-and-revitalisation
https://www.local.gov.uk/rural-recognition-recovery-resilience-and-revitalisation


 

 

People and Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

12. In line with the Board’s previous interest and expertise it is proposed that work in relation 

to the review of Local Enterprise Partnerships, trade and investment and the wider 

development of local economic strategies is advanced in line with the priorities of 

national and local stakeholders. 

 

13. The LGA has also secured a position on the Business in the Community’s Place 

Taskforce, chaired by Lord Steve Bassam. Recognising the diverse interests across 

councils we have put forward two representatives, a vice chair from each of the City 

Regions and People and Places Boards, who would attend on an alternating basis.  

 

14. The LGA will provide briefing support for these representatives who will report back to 

their respective boards on progress and seek a steer on priorities. We will also submit 

evidence to the inquiry and will co-host one of the taskforce’s roundtables.  

Digital Connectivity 

15. The Board has a well-established position of thought leadership in mobile and 

broadband connectivity. Over the coming political cycle it is proposed that members work 

with the ADEPT Digital Connectivity Working Group to: maintain pressure on the 

Government and broadband providers regarding the pace of the Gigabit rollout in more 

rural areas; ensure the Shared Rural Network delivers on its promise of improved mobile 

connectivity in remote communities; and, explore the opportunities for greater digital 

inclusion as part of the levelling up agenda. 

Employment and Skills 

16. A separate employment and skills paper is tabled at this meeting and covers our 

suggested work plan for this area. It includes a mix of policy and improvement activity 

and builds on discussions at the last Board meeting in June 2021. The main change to 

our suggested priorities is that we include a refresh of our well-established Work Local 

proposals. The aim of this is to support the sector on employability devolution now that 

the Government has confirmed that English devolution is back on the agenda, and 

different spatial footings would be considered 

 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

17. Members agreed a programme of work at the June 2021 Board meeting which included 

developing good practice case studies, peer networks and roundtables. This workstream 

will provide learning and evidence to support the sector and help government shape 

policy. At present, the Government have launched the pilot scheme – the Community 

Renewal Fund. Lead authorities (combined authorities, county and unitary authorities) 

have undertaken competitive bidding processes for the CRF and are waiting for the 

Government to announce the successful bids. In the meantime, we have commenced 

engagement with the sector to capture learning from the process so far. This work will be 

expanded once CRF programmes are announced and in place.  

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.bitc.org.uk/place-taskforce/
https://www.bitc.org.uk/place-taskforce/


 

 

People and Places Board 

14 September 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Implications for Wales 

18. Wales is on its own devolution journey. We continue to work with the WLGA on issues of 

shared importance, including the role of local government post-Brexit and the details of 

the UKSPF. 

Financial Implications 

19. The Board’s activities are supported by budgets for policy development and 

improvement. Resources will be allocated as directed by members in support of 

individual objectives. 

Equalities Implications 

20. Issues of equality, diversity and inclusion will be a core component of each of work 

streams identified above.  

 

21. In designing the levelling up inquiry, we will ensure a diverse range of participants, 

explicitly consider issues of economic and social deprivation and adopt an evidence led 

approach to demographic change and representation.  

 

22. Our work on digital connectivity will include a fresh focus on the issue of digital exclusion 

and the differential impact on opportunities for home working and education. 

23. Our employment and skills, and UKSPF work will take a closer look at how range of our 
work will also focus on EDI challenges and opportunities and how these can be better 
identified and addressed at a local level. 

24. In advocating for and on behalf of rural and coastal areas the board will reflect the 

specific and diverse concerns of these communities and, by successfully pressing the 

case for devolution, we will put more power and resources in the hands of local leaders, 

who we believe are best able to take decisions for their areas. 

Next steps 

25. Members are asked to consider and agree to the proposed work programme for the 

People and Places Board for the 2021/22 cycle.  

 

26. Officers will take forward work as agreed, including preparations for a devolution 

workshop.  

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk




Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 5





Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 6





Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 7




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 Terms of Reference
	4 People & Places Work Programme 2021/22
	5 Levelling Up Locally
	6 Refreshing our employment and skills work
	7 UK Shared Prosperity Fund: Learning from the Community Renewal Fund

